
This letter recommends that your Board approve a loan of up to $8,150,800 to fund one affordable 
multifamily rental housing development.  The allocation recommended in this action is for the 
Miramonte Apartments project, selected through the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for 
Affordable Multifamily Rental Housing, Round 23-A, issued by the Community Development 
Commission (Commission).

SUBJECT

July 03, 2018

The Honorable Board of Commissioners
Community Development Commission
County of Los Angeles
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration
500 West Temple Street 
Los Angeles, California 90012
 
Dear Commissioners:

APPROVAL OF FUNDING AND ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION FOR ONE MULTIFAMILY 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT LOCATED IN THE UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITY 

OF FLORENCE-FIRESTONE
(DISTRICT 2) (3 VOTE) 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD:

1. Acting as a responsible agency pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), 
certify that the Commission has considered the attached exemption determination for the Miramonte 
Apartments project, which was prepared by the County of Los Angeles Department of Regional 
Planning as lead agency; and find that this project will not cause a significant impact on the 
environment.

2. Approve the loan to the recommended developer, A Community of Friends, using up to $8,150,800
 in Affordable Housing Trust Funds, comprised of County Affordable Housing Funds and Mental 
Health Housing Funds, for the Miramonte Apartments affordable housing development.

3. Authorize the Executive Director, or designee, to negotiate, execute, and if necessary, amend, or 
reduce the loan agreement with the recommended developer, A Community of Friends, or their 
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Commission-approved designee, and all related documents, including but not limited to documents 
to subordinate the loan to construction and permanent financing, and any intergovernmental, 
interagency, or inter-creditor agreements necessary for the implementation of the development, 
following approval as to form by County Counsel.

4. Authorize the Executive Director, or designee, to incorporate, as needed, up to $1,150,800 in 
County Affordable Housing Funds and $7,000,000 in Mental Health Housing Funds into the 
Commission’s approved Fiscal Year 2018-2019 budget on an as-needed basis and included in future 
Fiscal Year budgets accordingly, for the purposes described herein.

5. Authorize the Executive Director, or designee, to reallocate Commission funding set aside for 
affordable housing at the time of project funding, as needed and within the project’s approved 
funding limit, in line with project needs, and within the requirements for each funding source.

PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

As a result of NOFA Round 23-A, a total of 20 projects will be recommended for funding.  Eighteen of 
the NOFA 23-A projects were previously approved by your Board on February 20, 2018, March 13, 
2018, May 8, 2018, and June 19, 2018.  The Miramonte Apartments project is being recommended 
to your Board for approval at this time.

The project seeking approval through this action is a multifamily affordable housing development that 
will provide 44 new housing units, of which 28 units will be set aside for mentally ill households, eight 
units for homeless households, seven units for general low-income families, and one unit for an 
onsite manager.  

Approval is requested to ensure that the housing development project can meet the upcoming July 9, 
2018 deadline for submitting a funding application to the California Department of Housing and 
Community Development.  The Commission will return to your Board at a later date with a separate 
action to allocate the balance of NOFA Round 23-A funding to the remaining project.

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

The recommended loan will provide up to $8,150,800 in Affordable Housing Trust Funds.  This total, 
comprised of $1,150,800 in County Affordable Housing Funds and $7,000,000 in Mental Health 
Housing Funds, will be incorporated into the Commission’s approved Fiscal Year 2018-2019 budget 
on an as-needed basis and included in future Fiscal Year budgets accordingly.

FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

On September 12, 2017, a total of $64,600,000 in Affordable Housing Trust Funds was made 
available for NOFA Round 23-A for affordable housing construction activities, which included 
$39,600,000 in County Affordable Housing Fund, of which $9,200,000 are Measure H Funds, and 
$25,000,000 in Mental Health Housing Funds.

In response to an overwhelming demand for Mental Health Housing Funds by 10 qualified projects, 
on January 16, 2018, the Board approved an increase in NOFA funds to $49,000,000 to ensure 
these 10 projects would be financed.  This action allowed the Commission to backfill the Mental 
Health Housing Funds shortfall with a combination of Mental Health Housing Funds initially reserved 
for a future NOFA and $9,250,000 in available Affordable Housing Trust Funds.
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A total of 20 projects were selected through NOFA Round 23-A.  Eighteen of the projects were 
previously approved by your Board on February 20, 2018, March 13, 2018, May 8, 2018, and June 
19, 2018.  The Miramonte Apartments project is being recommended for approval at this time.  The 
Commission will return to your Board at a later date with a separate action to allocate the balance of 
NOFA Round 23-A funding to the remaining project.

The loan agreement and related documents will incorporate affordability restrictions, target assisted 
populations, and contain provisions requiring the developer to comply with all applicable federal, 
state, and local laws.  The loan will be evidenced by a promissory note and secured by a deed of 
trust, with the term of affordability enforced by a recorded regulatory agreement.  Approval of this 
project will leverage approximately $9.7 million in additional external funding sources.  

The loan agreement and related documents for this project will reflect the respective Special Needs 
set-asides and indicate that the assisted units will be affordable to households earning no more than 
30% of the median income for the Los Angeles-Long Beach Metropolitan Statistical Area, adjusted 
for family size, as established by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  Income 
targeting may be as high as 35% AMI with reasonable justification provided by the applicant and 
approved by the Commission. The loan agreement will require that the affordable housing units be 
set aside for a period of 55 years.  Subject to various underwriting requirements, the developer may 
be required by the Commission or other lenders to create a single asset entity to designate 
ownership of the project.  This “designee” will be a Commission-approved single asset entity created 
by the developer prior to execution of the loan agreement and all related loan documents.

This letter also recommends that the Executive Director have the authority to reallocate funds set 
aside for affordable housing development at the time of project funding to better align project funds 
with available resources.  Any reallocation of funds will be made within the project’s approved 
funding limit, in line with project needs, and within the requirements for each funding source.

ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION

The proposed Miramonte Apartments project has been reviewed by the Commission pursuant to the 
requirements of CEQA.

Miramonte Apartments was determined ministerially exempt from the requirements of CEQA by the 
County of Los Angeles Department of Regional Planning in accordance with CEQA Guidelines 
section 15268.  The Commission’s consideration of this determination satisfies the requirements of 
CEQA.

Environmental documentation for the proposed project is enclosed.

IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS)

The requested action will increase the supply of Special Needs and affordable housing units in the 
County of Los Angeles.
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MONIQUE KING-VIEHLAND 

Executive Director

Enclosures

Respectfully submitted,

MKV:KT:LK:ck
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